
Argyll and Bute Council 
 Comhairle Earra-Ghàidheal Agus Bhòid  
 
Executive Director:  Douglas Hendry 

 

 
Kilmory, Lochgilphead, PA31 8RT 

Tel:  01546 602127  Fax:  01546 604435 
DX 599700 LOCHGILPHEAD 

30 March 2022 

 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
A meeting of the ARGYLL AND BUTE LOCAL REVIEW BODY will be held BY MICROSOFT 
TEAMS on WEDNESDAY, 6 APRIL 2022 at 9:30 AM, which you are requested to attend. 

 

 
Douglas Hendry 

Executive Director 
 

 
BUSINESS 

 

 1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 3. CONSIDER NOTICE OF REVIEW REQUEST: SOROBA LODGE, OBAN PA34 4SB  

  (a) Further information received from Planning Officer (Pages 3 - 8) 

  (b) Comments received from Interested Parties (Pages 9 - 14) 

 
Argyll and Bute Local Review Body 

 
 Councillor Audrey Forrest Councillor David Kinniburgh (Chair)

 Councillor Alastair Redman 
   

 
 Contact: Hazel MacInnes  Tel: 01546 604269 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 

IN RESPECT OF 
 

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL  
LOCAL REVIEW BODY  

 
21/0005/LRB 

 
REFUSAL OF PLANNING PERMISSION FOR ERECTION 

OF LAND TO FORM YARD FOR ERECTION OF TWO 
HOLIDAY UNITS AND THE INSTALLATION OF A SEPTIC 

TANK – PLANNING APPLICATION REFERENCE 
20/01542/PP 

 
 

GARDEN GROUND OF SOROBA LODGE, OBAN. 
 

 
28.02.2022 

 

Page 3 Agenda Item 3a



At the second calling of the above Review, Members have requested additional information and 
clarification from planning officers. The following is our response to the matters raised: 
 

 A summary of the legal advice received from Brodies Solicitors in respect of a similar and 
current planning application. 
 
Comment: Brodies Solicitors have made the following points pertinent to the current 
Review: 
 
The Council has a statutory power under s.41(1) of the 1997 Act to attach conditions 
regulating the development or use of any land under the control of the applicant (whether 
or not it forms part of the application site), or requiring the carrying out of works on any 
such land, so far as appears expedient to for the purposes of or in connection with the 
proposed development. 
 
However, they agree that the use of the existing dwellinghouse to provide incidental bed 
and breakfast accommodation is not ‘development’. 
 
Thus, whilst a legally competent planning condition under s.41(1) of the Act could, in 
principle, be drafted, any such condition would be ‘incredibly difficult’ [their words] to 
monitor/enforce. 
 
Notwithstanding the statutory power conveyed under s.41(1) of the Act, Brodies Solicitors 
consider that such a condition may not meet all of the necessary tests for imposing 
conditions in Circular 4/1998. In particular, such a condition is likely to fail at least the 
enforceability test and possibly the reasonableness test.   
 
In addition, Brodies Solicitors comment that the case officer’s assessment of the situation is 
correct: There is nothing to prevent the intensification of use of the access road simply by 
all occupants of the dwellinghouse (assuming all existing bedrooms are occupied, whether 
by the applicants and their family or in part for use as a B&B) all having a vehicle each. 
That being the case, the justification for (and hence reasonableness of) the condition might 
be questioned.  
 
For all of these reasons, Brodies Solicitors conclude that while a competent condition could 
be drafted, they consider it likely that it could be successfully challenged – either by an 
appeal against the condition or by a s.42 application in due course (which could also be 
appealed if refused). 
 
In respect of the possibility of limiting the use of the development by Legal Agreement, 
Brodies Solicitors state that they: 
 
Consider such a restriction could in theory satisfy the tests for planning obligations in 
Circular 3/2012, but, again they consider it likely that an obligation could be successfully 
challenged. Circular 3/2012 notes that there is a limited role for obligations in restricting the 
use of land or buildings, and that restrictions on use are rarely appropriate and should 
generally be avoided as they can be intrusive, resource-intensive, difficult to monitor and 
enforce and can introduce unnecessary burdens or constraints. The same concerns about 
justification would apply here as would apply in the case of a condition.  
 
For these reasons, while a planning obligation might be used, it would be susceptible to 
challenge at a later date through the s.75A process with the possibility of an appeal to a 
Reporter. 
 

Page 4



For the reasons summarised above, officers have not included such a condition within the 
list of suggested planning conditions contained below. Neither are officers recommending 
that Members consider the use of a planning obligation in this case. 
 

 Appropriate conditions and reasons to attach to any consent should the Members of the 
LRB be minded to approve this application. 
 
Comment: Officers maintain their previously stated opinion that planning conditions seeking 
to secure the necessary road improvements, seeking to clarify the suitability of the existing 
bridge/culvert and to secure any necessary improvements, and seeking to secure the 
necessary road safety audit / risk assessment / traffic management plan would, in whole or 
in part, fail the necessary legal tests for the use of planning conditions.  
 
However, should Members decide to set aside the advice of officers, the following planning 
conditions are suggested: 
 
1. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the details 

specified on the application form dated 31/08/20; supporting information 
and, the approved drawings listed in the table below unless the prior 
written approval of the Planning Authority is obtained for an amendment 
to the approved details under Section 64 of the Town and Country 
Planning (Scotland) Act 1997. 
 
Plan Title. Plan 

Ref. 
No. 

Version Date 
Received 

Site and Location 
Plans  

101  01/09/20 

Site Plan Showing 
Aerial Image  

102   01/09/20 

Proposed Holiday 
Pod No. 1 – 
Plans, Sections & 
Elevations 

103 a  01/09/20 

Proposed Holiday 
Pod No. 2 – 
Plans, Sections & 
Elevations 

104 a  01/09/20 

Supporting 
Statement (7 
Pages) 

  01/09/20 

 
Reason:  For the purpose of clarity, to ensure that the development is 
implemented in accordance with the approved details.  
 
Note to Applicant: 
 

 This planning permission will last only for three years from the date of this 
decision notice, unless the development has been started within that period 
[See section 58(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as 
amended).] 

 
 In order to comply with Sections 27A(1)  of the Town and Country Planning 

(Scotland) Act 1997, prior to works commencing on site it is the responsibility 

Page 5



of the developer to complete and submit the attached ‘Notice of Initiation of 
Development’ to the Planning Authority specifying the date on which the 
development will start. Failure to comply with this requirement constitutes a 
breach of planning control under Section 123(1) of the Act. 

 
 In order to comply with Section 27B(1) of the Town and Country Planning 

(Scotland) Act 1997 it is the responsibility of the developer to submit the 
attached ‘Notice of Completion’ to the Planning Authority specifying the date 
upon which the development was completed.  

 
Both the Notification of Initiation and Notification of Completion forms 
referred to above are available via the following link on the Council’s 
website:  
 
https://www.argyll-bute.gov.uk/planning-and-environment/make-planning-
application 
 

2. Notwithstanding the provisions of Class 9 of the Town and Country 
Planning (Use Classes) (Scotland) Order 1997 the residential 
accommodation hereby approved shall be used for short term holiday 
occupancy only and not as a main residence and shall not be occupied by 
any family, group or individual for a cumulative period of more than three 
calendar months in any one year. A register showing dates of arrivals and 
departures shall be maintained at the premises and shall be available at 
all reasonable times for inspection by the Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: In order to define the permitted occupancy having regard to the 
fact that the premises are unsuitable for occupation as a permanent 
dwelling due to their size and construction, and having regard to the 
relevant provisions of the Development Plan. 
 
Note to Applicant: 
 
For the avoidance of doubt this permission only provides for the 
occupation of the premises on a short term basis on the grounds that the 
development is unsuited to full time residential occupation. Specifically the 
occupation of the premises as a dwellinghouse or dwellinghouses shall 
require the benefit of a separate planning permission. 

3. No development shall commence until details of the required 
improvements to the service road and connection with the existing public 
road have been submitted to and approved by the planning authority. 
Such details shall incorporate: 
 
i) A vehicular access layout providing a road from the junction with 

the U128, Soroba Hill Road, extending for 33 metres or 
thereabouts (including the bridge/culvert) in a southerly direction, 
to the Soroba House Hotel/Soroba Lodge junction on the private 
track, over which the public has a right of access in terms of the 
Roads (Scotland) Act 1984. 
 

ii) The junction with the existing public road improved to provide 
visibility splays of 2.4 metres to point X by 42 metres to point Y 
formed from the centre line of the junction. 

Page 6



 
iii) A turning head for the public service vehicle to be located to the 

south of the bridge, opposite the Soroba House Hotel/Soroba 
Lodge junction. 

 
Prior to work starting on site, the junction with the existing public road 
shall be fully formed and surfaced and the visibility splays shall be cleared 
of all obstructions such that nothing shall disrupt visibility from a point 1.05 
metres above the junction at point X to a point 0.6 metres above the 
public road carriageway at point Y. The visibility splays shall be 
maintained clear of all obstructions thereafter. 
 
All access roads and footways granted consent shall be constructed to at 
least base course level prior to any work starting on the siting/erection of 
the ‘holiday pods’ which they are intended to serve and the final wearing 
surface of the roads and footways shall be applied concurrently with the 
first occupation of the ‘holiday pods’. 
 
Reason: In the interests of road safety and to ensure the timely provision 
of a service road commensurate to the scale of the overall development.  
 
 

4. No development shall commence until a detailed structural survey of the 
existing bridge/culvert has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the planning authority in consultation with the Council’s structures team. 
The required survey shall be prepared by a qualified structural engineer 
and shall be sufficient to certify that the existing bridge/culvert is able to 
safely accommodate up to 44 gross metric tonnes multi axle heavy goods 
vehicles. Or, should such certification not be demonstrated, provide a 
detailed written schedule and specification of the works necessary to 
improve or replace the existing bridge/culvert in order that it will 
accommodate vehicles of the type and weight specified in above. 
 
Any improvement/rebuilding/replacement works agreed by virtue of the 
above requirements must be fully completed to the satisfaction of the 
planning authority in consultation with the Council’s structures team 
before any other part of the development commences. 
 
Reason: In the interests of road safety. 

Page 7



5. No development shall commence until a detailed written safety audit / risk 
assessment / traffic management plan sufficient to ascertain and mitigate 
any implications caused by the proposed development both during 
construction phase and on completion of the development is submitted to 
and approved in writing by the planning authority. 
 
Any roads improvements or road management strategies agreed by virtue 
of the above requirements must be fully completed to the satisfaction of 
the planning authority in consultation with the Council’s roads engineer, 
Sustrans, Scotways and any other stakeholders before any other part of 
the development commences. 
 
Reason: In the interests of road safety due to the fact that the proposed 
access track is a shared primary school link path/cycle path, with the cycle 
path being part of the core path network. 

6. Notwithstanding the provisions of Condition 1, the development shall 
incorporate a surface water drainage system which is consistent with the 
principles of sustainable urban drainage systems (SuDS) compliant with 
the guidance set out in CIRIA’s SuDS Manual C753. The requisite surface 
water drainage shall be operational prior to the development being 
brought into use and shall be maintained as such thereafter. 
 
Reason: To ensure the provision of an adequate surface water drainage 
system and to prevent flooding. 

 

Page 8



 
 

1 
 

                fair planning & design 
                                                                                chartered planning and architectural services 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Response to Planning Authority submission of further additional information relative 

to Notice of Review 21/0005/LRB 
Argyll and Bute Council – Local Review Body 

 
 
 
Appellant:   Michael & Rowan Acey 
 
Project Ref:  2020034 
 
Development: Refusal of planning application 20/01542/PP: 

Erection of 2 holiday pods and installation of septic tank 
 
Site:    Grounds of Soroba Lodge, Oban, PA34 4SB 
 
Scale:    Local development 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 9 Agenda Item 3b



 
 

2 
 

 
Response 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to respond to the Planning Authority’s provision of additional 
information submitted on 07/03/22 relative to Notice of Review 21/0005/LRB.  
 
The Local Review Body sought information from the Planning Authority on two specific 
points, within a framework of exploring options for a competent motion: 
 

1) A summary of legal advice that the Planning Authority had received relative to a 
similar proposal referenced in their earlier submissions. 

2) Suggested planning conditions and reasons in the event that Members of the LRB 
wished to approve the application. 

 
 
Although we are not aware of the specific details of the other case referenced by 
planning officers and therefore cannot comment on its degree of relevance, we are 
grateful for sight of a summary of the legal opinion provided by Brodies LLP on that case.   
 
We are heartened to read Brodies LLP confirmation that a planning condition covering B&B 
usage within an existing house would be legally competent, and further, that a Section 75 
legal agreement provides an alternative mechanism by which B&B activity can be 
controlled.   
 
We note the caveats highlighted by planning officers, regarding potential difficulties in 
enforcing any such planning condition or legal agreement, but assert that such concerns 
are not insurmountable.  Numerous planning conditions applying to a range of 
development types present challenges for monitoring and enforcement, but that does not 
prevent them from being applied, nor should it preclude a Planning Authority from 
approving developments that are fundamentally acceptable.  
 
In this case, the whole driver behind the project is to provide self-contained 
accommodation that will provide B&B guests and the applicants (plus their young 
daughter) high levels of privacy.  Any B&B guest accommodation at the site will be 
ancillary to the appellants’ demanding full time roles as primary school teacher and 
bespoke furniture designer/local employer.  The appellants simply do not have the time or 
aspiration to run a larger scale tourism operation than two bedrooms.  Relocating that B&B 
activity from the house to the new garden units will be entirely self-regulating, providing a 
relief from the rigours of sharing a family home with B&B guests.   
 
Further, in the event that the Planning Authority wished to monitor future B&B activity, it 
would be a simple matter of searching mainstream accommodation websites to verify 
what accommodation is being advertised for guest occupancy – as per the most 
widespread and resource efficient method generally employed by planning authorities for 
this purpose. 
 
We ask that the LRB accepts this proposal as one which will improve on existing tourism 
accommodation provision in a way that will not generate additional traffic.   
 
In the context of the previously highlighted 2007 Elderslie decision - whereby a more 
substantial increase in vehicular demand was considered by the Planning Authority as not 

Page 10



 
 

3 
 

representing a material intensification of use of the same shared access - we reassert that it 
is competent for the planning authority to conclude similarly in this case. 
 
If additional safeguards are considered necessary to assuage concerns regarding the 
existing access, we reoffer our previous undertakings to accept planning conditions 
verifying the development as a quid-pro-quo swap of two double bedrooms of guest 
accommodation within Soroba Lodge for two double bedrooms of guest accommodation 
within the garden grounds of Soroba Lodge. 
 
 
Turning to the recommended planning conditions, we have some residual concerns and 
must request the following: 
 
Planning conditions 3, 4 and 5 suggested by the Planning Authority continue to be founded 
on the belief or assumption that additional traffic will be generated by this proposal.  The 
result of granting planning permission with three conditions referring to upgrading of the 
existing access would be equivalent to the refusal we already have – it would entirely miss 
the point that our proposal will not generate additional traffic.  We respectfully ask that 
planning conditions 3, 4 and 5 as suggested by planning officers are not attached to any 
consent that may be issued. 
 
Our position on the access and traffic considerations, including our proposals to effectively 
control this, is central to our appeal and is summarised above.  If Members accept our 
arguments and wish to approve the application, we do accordingly request that the 
alternative planning conditions listed overleaf are attached. 
 
 
 

 
............................................ 
Stephen Fair MRTPI MURP 

fair planning & design 
 
16 March 2022 
 
 
Continued overleaf…./ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



 
 

4 
 

Alternative suggested planning conditions (2 pages): 
 
 
1. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the details specified on 

the application form dated 31/08/20; supporting information and, the approved 
drawings listed in the table below unless the prior written approval of the Planning 
Authority is obtained for an amendment to the approved details under Section 64 
of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997. 
 

Plan Title. Plan 
Ref. 
No. 

Version Date 
Received 

Site and Location Plans  101  01/09/20 
Site Plan Showing Aerial 
Image  

102  01/09/20 

Proposed Holiday Pod No. 
1 – Plans, Sections & 
Elevations 

103a  01/09/20 

Proposed Holiday Pod No. 
2 – Plans, Sections & 
Elevations 

104a  01/09/20 

Supporting Statement (7 
Pages) 

  01/09/20 

 
Reason:  For the purpose of clarity, to ensure that the development is 
implemented in accordance with the approved details.  
 
Note to Applicant: 
 

• This planning permission will last only for three years from the date of this decision 
notice, unless the development has been started within that period [See section 58(1) 
of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended).] 

 
• In order to comply with Sections 27A(1)  of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) 

Act 1997, prior to works commencing on site it is the responsibility of the developer to 
complete and submit the attached ‘Notice of Initiation of Development’ to the Planning 
Authority specifying the date on which the development will start. Failure to comply 
with this requirement constitutes a breach of planning control under Section 123(1) of 
the Act. 

 
• In order to comply with Section 27B(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) 

Act 1997 it is the responsibility of the developer to submit the attached ‘Notice of 
Completion’ to the Planning Authority specifying the date upon which the development 
was completed.  

 
Both the Notification of Initiation and Notification of Completion forms referred to 
above are available via the following link on the Council’s website:  
 
https://www.argyll-bute.gov.uk/planning-and-environment/make-planning-
application 

Page 12



 
 

5 
 

2. Notwithstanding the provisions of Class 9 of the Town and Country Planning (Use 
Classes) (Scotland) Order 1997 as amended the residential accommodation 
hereby approved shall be used for short term holiday occupancy only and not as a 
main residence and shall not be occupied by any family, group or individual for a 
cumulative period of more than three calendar months in any one year. A register 
showing dates of arrivals and departures shall be maintained at the premises and 
shall be available at all reasonable times for inspection by the Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: In order to define the permitted occupancy having regard to the fact that 
the premises are unsuitable for occupation as a permanent dwelling due to their 
size and construction, and having regard to the relevant provisions of the 
Development Plan. 
 
Note to Applicant: 
 
For the avoidance of doubt this permission only provides for the occupation of the 
premises on a short term basis on the grounds that the development is unsuited to 
full time residential occupation. Specifically the occupation of the premises as a 
dwellinghouse or dwellinghouses shall require the benefit of a separate planning 
permission. 

 
3. Notwithstanding the provisions of Class 9 of the Town and Country Planning (Use 

Classes) (Scotland) Order 1997 as amended, from the date of the first occupation of 
either holiday unit hereby approved there shall be no bed and breakfast 
accommodation within the existing house whatsoever - unless first otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Planning Authority. 
 
Reason – to ensure that vehicle numbers do not increase from their existing levels, in 
the interests of road safety.   

 
4. Notwithstanding the provisions of Condition 1, the development shall incorporate a 

surface water drainage system which is consistent with the principles of 
sustainable urban drainage systems (SuDS) compliant with the guidance set out 
in CIRIA’s SuDS Manual C753. The requisite surface water drainage shall be 
operational prior to the development being brought into use and shall be 
maintained as such thereafter. 
 
Reason: To ensure the provision of an adequate surface water drainage system 
and to prevent flooding. 

 
5. No development shall commence or is hereby authorised until a Construction 

Method Statement (CMS) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Planning Authority.  The CMS shall include a full description of material delivery 
methods, construction vehicle size, vehicle numbers and vehicle weights 
proposed for use during construction phases, as well as defined hours during 
which all construction vehicle movements will be confined having regard to the 
nearby primary school campus term time opening hours. Thereafter, the 
development shall only be undertaken in strict accordance with such details as are 
approved. 
 
Reason: In the interests of road and pedestrian safety. 

 
 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3a Further information received from Planning Officer
	3b Comments received from Interested Parties

